

# Parent and Student Handbook

# Contents

4	ABOUT US	
	Philosophy	6
	Vision Statement	6
	Mission and Purpose	7
	What We Believe	7
	Core Values	8
	Missions & Community Service	8
	Worship	8
	Christian Community	8
	Safe Environment	8
	Customer Service	8
	Student Outcomes	8
4	ADMISSIONS	
	General Admission Requirements	9
	International Admissions Requirements	10
	Philosophy of Admissions	11
	Christian Faith	11
	Academic Ability	11
	Ability to Pay	11
	Non-Discriminatory Policy	11
	Admissions Confidentiality	11
	Re-admission Procedures	11

Christian Arbitration	12
Financial	
Tuition Policies	12
Payment Options	12
Delinquent Payments	13
Registration Fee	13
Other Fees and/or Optional Costs	13
Fundraising	14
Early Withdrawal Policy	14
Transcript Requests	14
Other Financial Policies	14
Academics	
Academic Pathways	15
Accreditation	15
Promotion to the Next Grade Level in High School	15
Schedule Changes	16
Graduation/Diploma Options	16-17
Valedictorian	18
Salutatorian	18
College Prep Diploma Consideration	19
Testing and College Application Requirement	19
Transcript Credits	19
Transcript Credit for Outsourced Core Courses	20
Transcript Credit for Outsourced or Online Electives	20
Dual Enrollment	20

Failing Grades	20
Credit Recovery	20
Graduation Participation Requirement	21
Graduation Requirement for a CCA State Approved/Accredited Diploma	21
Students not planning on a CCA State Approved/Accredited Diploma	22
Graduation Cords	22
Homeschool Hybrid Students	23
Honor Course Credits	23
FACTS (formerly RenWeb) Google Classroom	23
CLASSROOM	23
Teacher Role	23
Honor Codes	24
Attendance School Term	24
Arrival/Early Departure	24
School Hours/Late Start Fridays	24
Attendance/Tardies	25
Absences Due to College Visits	25
Appearance/Dress Code	25
Grading Scale/GPA/Weights/Placements	26
Progress Reports	27
Pass/Fail Policy	27
Academic Probation	27
Report Cards	27
Conferences	27
Testing	27
Student Conduct	27

Cell Phones	30
Acceptable Use of Technology	30
Classroom Chapel Standards	32
Behavioral Probation	32
In- School/Suspension (ISS,OSS)	32
Cheating/Plagiarism	33
National BETA Club	33
School Lunch Program	33
JV & Varsity Eligibility	33
Activities and Field Trips Policy	34
Cost/Publicity	34
Supervision	34
Chaperone Policy for Non-CCA Personnel	34
Additional Policies	35
Bus Rules	35
Confidentiality	35
Unity	35
Parental Involvement	36
Media/Music/Entertainment	36
Sickness/Medicine	36
Game Attendance	36
Visitors/Loitering	36
Promotional Photos/Video	36
Child Abuse	37
Bullying	37
Holiday Observances	37
Social Events	37

Student Drivers	37
Personal Display of Affection	37
Pandemic Reopening Plan (When needed)	37
Handbook Clause	37

## **P**HILOSOPHY

Cumberland Christian Academy is an independent Christian school founded on the truth that the ultimate goal of all creation is to bring glory and honor to the triune God of the universe. The Holy Scripture says, "For from Him and through Him and to Him are all things. To Him be the glory forever! Amen." (Romans 11:36) This verse teaches that since God is the source and accomplisher, the goal of all created things is His glory. Therefore, mankind's and CCA's ultimate purpose is to glorify God and enjoy Him forever. (Genesis 1:26-27; 1 Corinthians 10:31)

We glorify God by obeying His Word. The Bible teaches that man was created in God's own image and commanded to occupy the earth and have dominion over it. (*Genesis 1:27-28*) However, when Adam and Eve chose to sin, they destroyed their relationship with God and their ability to think and act as God intended. We inherit a sinful heart from Adam. (*1 Corinthians 15:21-22*)

God provided a solution by sending His son, Jesus Christ, to earth to die for mankind's sins. By repenting and placing our faith in Him, we can be saved from judgment, cleansed from sin, and restored to a right relationship with God. Now, guided by His Word and filled with the Holy Spirit, we can properly relate to God and manage the earth as He intended. The purpose of Christian education is to impart these and similar truths so that every student knows the reality of who they are and God's plan for what they are to become. (1 John 4:14, 1:7; John 3:16; Ephesians 5:18)

Cumberland Christian Academy is a Christian educational ministry with full authority to minister the gospel, conduct missions, conduct worship services, and minister the historic sacraments of the faith under the direction of its elders (The Board, Head of School, Executive Director) and its deacons (The Leadership Team). The school exists, within the context of its mission and purpose statements, to support Christian families and activate students to be vital participants in other gospel ministries, *especially local churches*.

Because of our Christian ministry philosophy, CCA's overarching goals are to nurture and challenge students to:

- know Jesus Christ as Savior and Lord (John 17:3)
- adopt a biblical worldview (*Psalm 111:10*)
- love one another as themselves (Matthew 22:37-39)
- achieve academic excellence (Colossians 3:23)
- grow into Christ-likeness as they mature spiritually, emotionally, socially, and physically (Luke 2:52)
- evangelize and make disciples of all nations (Matthew 28:19-20)

In order that they may bring glory to God by serving our Lord and others through their character, spiritual integrity, and leadership (1 Corinthians 10:31).

## **VISION STATEMENT**

Educate Every Student Every Day, in Every Way to ensure college, career, and citizenship readiness to compete and lead in a global society.

## **O**UR **M**ISSION AND **P**URPOSE

**Learn** by providing a wide range of educational options utilizing in-person learning, independent study, online tutorial programs, dual enrollment, as well as English language learner support.

**Innovate** by implementing enrichment opportunities such as STEM, technology in the classrooms, Performing and Visual Arts, and Athletic Development.

**Fuse** the 4C's of 21st Century Education (Collaboration, Communication, Creativity, and Critical Thinking) into the daily curriculum taught from pre-kindergarten through high school graduation.

**Elevate** students by building leadership capacity through Christian development of discipline, character, responsibility, and service to the community.

## WHAT WE BELIEVE

- One God is revealed in three persons: the Father, the Son, and the Holy Spirit. (*Deuteronomy 6:4; John 1:14, 18; Matthew 28:19; John 8:58; John 15:26*)
- The triune God created all things. (Col. 1:6; John 1, 3)
- Jesus Christ is God the Son in the flesh. He was born a virgin. Because He is God, He led a sinless life and performed miracles while on the earth. (John 1:1, 14; Matthew 3:17; Luke 1:26-35; Matthew 1:22-23; Hebrews 4:15; Acts 2:22)
- Jesus Christ died on the cross for not only our sins but also for the sins of the whole world. We have redemption through His blood, even the forgiveness of sins. (1 John 2:2; Hebrews 9:22-28; Colossians 1:14)
- Salvation is found in Christ alone. (Acts 4:12; I John 4:9; John 14:6)
- The Lord Jesus Christ was buried and He rose on the third day so that we who believe may be justified freely before God. (*I Corinthians 15:3-7; Romans 5:1-2*)
- The Holy Bible is God's written revelation to all men, is inspired by Him without error, and is the authoritative Word of God. (2 Timothy 3:16-17; Psalm 7-11; 1 Thessalonians 2:13)
- God wonderfully and immutably creates each person as male or female. These two distinct, complementary genders together reflect the image and nature of God. (*Gen 1:26-27*) Rejection of one's biological sex is a rejection of the image of God within that person.
- God instituted marriage to be the life-long union of one man and one woman (Genesis 2:18-25; Matthew 19:4-6). The school further believes that homosexual unions are in violation of natural law as posited by scripture (Genesis 1:28). Homosexual unions come under categorical prohibition in the Old and New Testaments (Leviticus 18:22, 24; 20:13; I Corinthians 6:9-10; I Timothy 1:9-10) as contrary to God's design (Romans 1:26-27). In obedience to God's word, Cumberland Christian Academy declares that same-sex unions are contrary to the will of God and sin against the commandments of God. Heterosexual marriage is an estate to be held in honor by all and kept inviolate (Hebrews 13:4; I Thessalonians 4:2-5).
- God offers redemption and restoration to all who confess and forsake their sin, seeking His mercy and forgiveness through Jesus Christ. (Acts 3:19-21; Rom 10:9-10; 1 Cor 6:9-11.)
- Every person must be afforded compassion, love, kindness, respect, and dignity. (*Mark 12:28-31; Luke 6:31.*) Hateful and harassing behavior or attitudes directed toward any individual are to be repudiated and are not in accord with Scripture nor the doctrines of Cumberland Christian Academy.

## CORE VALUES

## MISSIONS & COMMUNITY SERVICE

We are an educational ministry whose primary core value is to share the gospel and teach our students to do so and to serve one another, the community, and the world. Our "Will You Make a Difference" theme is used school-wide to challenge our staff and students to develop projects that help our community and the world.

#### Worship

Understanding that God is worthy of worship in everything we do, we are preparing all of our students to be lifetime worshippers, using all of their gifts to glorify God.

## **CHRISTIAN COMMUNITY**

Creating a "church family" community through missions, trips, retreats, clubs, small groups, Bible classes, and discipleship, we will teach God's truth through mentor and peer relationships.

#### SAFE LEARNING ENVIRONMENT

We will create a safe, healthy, inclusive, and loving environment through biblical affirmation, advocacy, and discipline.

## **CUSTOMER SERVICE**

Acknowledging that we are a business and that families and their children are our customers, we will do everything we can to serve them better without compromising biblical and professional ethics.

## STUDENT QUITCOMES

Cumberland Christian Academy Students will:

- Read at the appropriate grade level
- Write and speak clearly as a means to express their ideas
- Demonstrate the appropriate math skills for their grade level
- Understand the general history of Georgia, the United States, and the world
- Understand the science of God's creation and how to apply the scientific method of investigation
- Demonstrate growth in their academic ability from year to year in a measurable way
- Learn successfully in a variety of methods whether in-person, independently, or online
- Apply a variety of technology skills to create presentations that communicate learning
- Collaborate productively with their peers in various academic and extracurricular activities.
- Utilize critical thinking skills to create meaning from that knowledge in new and diverse situations
- Develop effective communication skills
- Know the basic tenants of the gospel and the pathway to salvation and a biblical worldview
- Identify themselves as leaders by virtue of their Christian character and influence on others around them
- Experience a sense of worship in chapel services
- Participate in school athletic, academic, and/or artistic extra-curricular activities
- Attend the educational institution, military, or career training that is the best fit for them academically, artistically, financially, and spiritually
- Participate in various community service or mission projects within their community

# GENERAL ADMISSIONS REQUIREMENTS

Cumberland Christian Academy seeks students that are willing to grow not only intellectually, but also emotionally, physically, morally, and spiritually in accordance with a Christian worldview. (*Luke 2:52*) Our curriculum reflects our Christian perspective and is designed to prepare the student for college and career. (1 Samuel 16:7)

Academically, we look for average or above-average students who can succeed in a traditional classroom environment or work independently on one of our online platforms. Occasionally, we make exceptions for students below grade level with the goal of them achieving grade level status.

CCA will not deny admittance to any student based on race, color, or national origin. Parents must complete the admissions process for their student(s) by returning all specified forms in the application with accompanying fees. With the exception of international students and hybrid homeschool students, applicants must undergo the required student screening, interview process, and placement testing before being considered for admittance. A student must be 3, 4, 5, or 6 years old respectfully on or before September 1 to be enrolled in K3, K4, K5, and 1st Grade.

Acceptance of students into CCA will not be official until all admissions requirements have been satisfactorily met. Applicants who withhold relevant information or who falsify information may not be accepted and may be required to withdraw from CCA if enrolled. Students who have been expelled or suspended from another school or CCA may not be admitted.

Parents will receive notification of the admittance decision from the Admissions Office. The invitation to enroll will contain instructions for completing the online enrollment packet. Upon acceptance, families must also submit:

\*Copy of immunization form

\*Copy of social security card

\*Copy of birth certificate

Student candidates applying to CCA are subject to the campus Principal and/or Head of School interview. Students entering CCA from homeschool or the international program are subject to interview by the Registrar or Principal.

CCA believes that God has placed the full responsibility for the training and education of the child upon the parents/guardians. Parents/guardians may choose to delegate some of their responsibility to a school, but it is the parents/guardians who are accountable before God for the education of their child. (Proverbs 22:6)

Because of this shared responsibility, there must be close communication and agreement between the home and school. If CCA is to be an extension of the home, there must be consistency between the two regarding the educational objectives, methods of achieving those objectives, and obligations of each party. Parents should choose CCA because its curriculum and methods are in harmony with the home. It is the responsibility of CCA to answer any and all questions regarding these issues to the satisfaction of families seeking admission. No parent, grandparent, or guardian should seek admission until they are satisfied with the answers to all questions. CCA assumes that if a family applies for admission, they are in complete accord with the Christian values, mission, purpose, beliefs, core values, objectives, methods, and obligations that accompany admission.

# International Admissions Requirements

## F-1 Admission Procedure

The student's international agent should contact our Registrar to schedule an interview and obtain an application form. The Registrar will collect the completed application form, a non-refundable application/registration fee, and other documents needed. Upon student acceptance, CCA will send an official acceptance letter and I-20 form to the applying student's home address.

## REQUIRED DOCUMENTS

- Completed CCA student application with non-refundable application/registration fee
- Transcript for rising 10<sup>th</sup>-12<sup>th</sup> graders or report card for rising 6<sup>th</sup>-9th graders (translated into English and complete with grading scale)
- Any standardized test scores from the past three years, translated into English
- Immunization records, translated into English
- Copy of passport/student VISA
- Proof of Medical Insurance

## Additional Requirements

- Students must read and adhere to all standards outlined in the CCA handbook.
- International students must not purchase or drink alcoholic beverages (including beer and wine) while in the United States.
- Use of illegal drugs or association with anyone involved with illegal drug use will result in an immediate return of the student to his or her home country.
- Smoking/Vaping is strictly prohibited.
- Host family arrangements must be confirmed before arriving in the U.S.
- International students must reside with a U.S. host family that is compatible with CCA values and/or objectives.
- We strongly recommend that students arrive a week before school starts or by the first day of school at the latest. Students who report 20 days or more after the beginning of any term may not receive academic credit for that term.
- Students must immediately inform the school of any change in host family arrangements, address changes, etc. Failure to do so will result in an immediate return to the student's home country.
- If the student's English language is not proficient for high school success, ESL classes may be required at an additional fee.
- International students may not drive until the second semester of their Senior year.
- College-bound international students are required to take the internet-based TOEFL.

## INTERNATIONAL STUDENT TUITION, FEES, AND ADDITIONAL EXPENSES

## INTERNATIONAL TUITION

- We accept direct wire transfers of funds.
- Tuition is due in one (1) annual payment unless other arrangements have been made with CCA.
- Tuition is non-refundable.
- Students participating in athletics must pay additional per-sport fees.
- Uniform shirts may be purchased through CCA's website. Khaki pants may be purchased locally provided they comply with the dress code.
- Host fees are paid in full each semester to CCA. Month to month payments are not available. CCA will

distribute host family reimbursements to host families.

- Lunch items and snacks may be purchased from the school.
- Additional fee for International Club field trips will be required.

## IMPORTANT ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

- Students must meet with CCA's International Director to establish an approved graduation plan.
- Any online coursework needed for graduation or another purpose will be paid for by the student or agent.
- All students must have a sponsoring international agent unless approved by our International Director.
- International students are allowed to participate in CCA athletics subject to the rules and requirements of the conference.

## SHORT-TERM AUDIT INTERNATIONAL ADMISSION PROCEDURE

Contact our Registrar to view and obtain an application form. She will collect the completed application form, a \$300 non-refundable application/registration fee, and other documents needed.

## PHILOSOPHY OF ADMISSIONS

## CHRISTIAN FAITH

Cumberland Christian Academy exists to glorify God by transforming, in partnership with parents and the Holy Spirit, students' hearts, minds, and souls. As such, our admissions philosophy is driven by the desire to partner with Christian parents; this defines CCA, first and foremost, as an unapologetically Christian school.

Beyond the desire to partner with Christian parents, CCA will follow God's lead by prayerfully considering students from non-religious families as an evangelistic outreach. Families will be required to acknowledge our unapologetically Christian approach. Those actively belonging to faiths that heretically distort the nature of Christ are not an appropriate fit with CCA's mission, values, and goals.

In obedience to God's word, Cumberland Christian Academy declares that LBGTQ+ lifestyle and same-sex unions are contrary to the will of God and a sin against the commandments of God. Therefore, the school reserves the right to dismiss any employee, student, or parent, who lives or professes an unrepentant LBGTQ+ lifestyle or act of homosexuality.

Attending CCA is not a right, but subject to the final discretion of the administration in all cases and for any reason. The school unilaterally reserves the right to dismiss any student, family, or employee without explanation or documentation.

## ACADEMIC ABILITY

CCA primarily accepts those students whose average score is in the 50<sup>th</sup> percentile or above on nationally normed tests. This is primarily a function of resources; CCA is not extensively equipped for remedial education and currently does not offer educational therapy, etc. Students who fall below these norms may be accepted with a written probationary academic contract. A student's ability to remain at CCA is based partially on the ability to successfully advance between grades. Students failing two or more classes may be dismissed, placed on a plan of improvement, or required to attend credit recovery classes at their parent's expense prior to re-enrollment.

#### ABILITY TO PAY

CCA operates on tuition payments. While we reserve the right to make tuition reductions based on extenuating circumstances for temporary family situations, no CCA-funded aid is available. Any state funding or contribution-based tuition support will be distributed according to policy guidelines related to the funding source; such scholarships never supersede CCA standards and values. Students may be withdrawn from the school for non-payment of accounts.

## Non-Discriminatory Policy

CCA admits students of any race, color, gender, and national origin to all rights, privileges, programs, and activities generally accorded or made available to students at the school. It does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, nationality, or ethnic origin in the administration of its educational policies, admission policies, hiring of staff, or athletic and other school-administered programs.

## Admissions Confidentiality

For the protection of the student and all parties, the reasons for Cumberland's admissions decisions are not public information and remain confidential.

## RE-ADMISSION PROCEDURES

Only students who left CCA in good standing will be considered for re-admission. At the discretion of the admissions director, a student may be required to interview with the principal, be assessed, and/or complete a shadow day. Re-admission of students into CCA will not be official until all requirements have been satisfactorily met. This will include the completion of the online enrollment packet. Initial admittance does not imply automatic re-admission in the future. CCA reserves the right to refuse re-admission to any returning student.

# CHRISTIAN ARBITRATION POLICY

CCA seeks to work with all its personnel, students, and families based on covenant relationships according to biblical concepts. We pledge to resolve according to biblical principles any and all conflicts which might arise. Should an issue arise which cannot be resolved after prayer, appeals, and long-suffering patience, we will use Christian mediation and, if necessary, legally binding arbitration in accordance with the *Rules of Procedure for Christian Conciliation*. The *Procedure for Christian Conciliation* was developed by the Institute for Christian Conciliation, a division of Peacemaker® Ministries (complete text of the Rules is available at www.peacemaker.net). Judgment upon an arbitration decision may be entered in any court otherwise having jurisdiction. The parties understand that these methods shall be the sole remedy for any controversy or claim arising out of this agreement and expressly waive their right to file a lawsuit in any civil court against one another for such disputes, except to enforce an arbitration decision. All personnel and families connected with CCA must agree with the school on this policy.

# **TUITION POLICIES**

## **PAYMENT OPTIONS**

**Annual:** A tuition discount will be granted if the full year's tuition is paid on or before June 1st. A tuition discount will be granted if the ½ year's tuition is paid by June 1st. (Refundable with 25% early withdrawal

penalty.) For families with more than one child—if only one child's tuition is paid in full, it must be the amount for the oldest child.

**Semester:** Two payments are made. Half is due on or before June 1st<sup>h</sup>. The remaining half is due on or before January 10<sup>th</sup>.

<u>Monthly:</u> Monthly payments may only be paid through FACTS (tuition management company). For new families, the person responsible for payments must register with FACTS and may choose:

- Automatic withdrawal register online (link provided through the CCA website)
- Credit Card contact FACTS at 1-866-441-4637 for registration and fees

## **DELINQUENT PAYMENTS**

Cumberland Christian Academy is both a ministry and a corporation and therefore must maintain a regular cash flow for the express purpose of meeting operating expenses. Therefore, this tuition payment policy must be the agreement between school families and the members of the CCA board. Students who have tuition accounts over 30 days past due or have an outstanding balance at the end of the school year will not be allowed to graduate, receive school records, or re-enroll for the next school year until past-due accounts are paid. CCA reserves the right to dismiss any student who is more than 30 days past due on tuition and/or fees. We also have the right to withhold student records for lack of payment. Parents who fail to pay on time should contact the business office for specific policies regarding delinquent payments. Unpaid fees may be added to the family's FACTS accounts.

## REGISTRATION FEE

Applications for new students include a **non-refundable** registration fee. Refer to CCA's admission policy in its entirety.

Currently enrolled students whose tuition/fee accounts are not past due are allowed a discounted re-enrollment fee by registering early for the next school term.

# OTHER FEES AND/OR OPTIONAL COSTS

- **Student Lunches** K3 through 12th-grade students may bring their lunches from home or purchase foods from our lunch program.
- **Supply List** All grade levels have required supplies. Supply list items must be purchased during the summer and brought to school at the beginning of the school year. Supply lists are posted on the website and/or sent home to the students.
- **Athletic** The amounts vary with each sport and must be paid before a student can participate. Report cards and permanent records may be held for unpaid sports fees.
- **Events/Field Trips** Events such as field trips or special banquets/dinners will be announced throughout the school term. For some activities, special T-shirts may be available for purchase.
- **Chromebook, Laptop, Tablet (keyboard required) -** 3rd-12th grade students are required to bring their own device to school each day for use in the classroom.
- **Preschool** Parents must provide a tri-fold sleeping mat, blanket and pillow for nap time..
- **Beta Club** High school students chosen for membership in the CCA chapter of the National Beta Club will be asked to pay a one-time fee of up to \$32 (National) which provides a certificate, Beta pin, and a seal for the diploma at graduation. Students are chosen for Beta Club membership on the basis of scholastic average, Christian character, and commendable attitudes as observed by the school staff.
- Lost Textbooks Students are held responsible for any textbooks issued to them. Please be aware that if,

for example, a book is taken out of a locker or desk, the student to whom it is assigned is still responsible for it. Because damaged, stolen, or missing textbooks will have to be replaced by the student, it is recommended that the student use extreme care. Report cards and permanent records may be held for lost or damaged books.

- **Art** A fee may be charged for an art course to cover the cost of a student's consumable supplies necessary for the course.
- **Science Lab / Technology Fee** A fee may be charged for a science course to cover the cost of a student's consumable supplies necessary for the course.
- **College Applications** Parents of 11<sup>th</sup> and 12th-grade students are responsible for college application fees and ACT/SAT registration and for forwarding information to the college counselor.
- **Late Tuition Fee** A fee will be charged for any late tuition payment after a 5-day grace period.
- **Returned Check Fee** A fee will be charged for returned checks.
- **Graduation Fee** The fee applies to K5 and 12TH-grade students (see yearly tuition sheet).
- **BUS FEES** Families with one student will be charged \$150 per month. Families with two or more students will be charged \$200 per month. This charge will be added to your FACTS account. Those families paying annually or per semester can pay online or by check monthly. There will be no prorated refunds for lack of use or for announced, temporary disruption of services.

## **FUNDRAISING**

All CCA families are encouraged to become actively involved in fundraising functions of the school such as the Patriot Fund and other specific fundraising activities.

## EARLY WITHDRAWAL POLICY

When you enroll your child at CCA, it is assumed that a student is enrolling for the entire year and school budgets are set accordingly. All registration fees are fully non-refundable. Prepaid tuition is refundable on a prorated basis subject to a 25% penalty. For parents who have not prepaid tuition, if a student withdraws between July 1<sup>st</sup> and the end of the school year, a 30-day advance written notice is required. At that time, and in addition to the tuition due, an early withdrawal fee equal to 25% of the yearly tuition for this school term will be charged. After all, fees are paid and withdrawal forms have been turned in, records will be available after two school days. Military and full-time missionary families are exempt from this policy in the case of a transfer.

## TRANSCRIPT REQUESTS

Transcripts will be released upon the request of parents and high school students and forwarded to the school desired, provided all accounts are current. Transcripts will not be sent if tuition/fees have not been paid in full. After all requirements have been met, records will be released within two school days of the request. Transcripts may be sent to colleges based on the request of a student. A fee of \$5 per transcript will be charged after 10 requests.

## **O**THER **F**INANCIAL **P**OLICIES

- Enrollment will be based on a first-come, first-served basis.
- CCA offers a referral credit/tuition discount for each family that refers to a new family that enrolls in K5–12th grade. Referral discounts are applied in the second semester once the family enrolls and pays January's tuition. Form1099 will be issued when legally required.
- CCA's After School Program (ASP) is available with an extra fee, for students K3–8th grade. Please see our website for further information and rates.
- International students should refer to the CCA website for registration and tuition information.
- Tuition discounts, grants, and scholarships have no redemptive cash value and are not refundable.

# ACADEMIC PROCEDURES

## ACADEMIC PATHWAYS

Two academic pathways are available for parents to consider: Traditional and Cumberland Online.

Traditional students are those who come to the classroom for instruction by the teacher.

Cumberland Online is a robust, comprehensive online or eLearning option offered at each of our campuses as an alternative to in-person learning for families who prefer their child(ren) to continue learning remotely. The online option is an accredited, self-paced, independent curriculum that students can take at home or on campus, but offers no teacher support for learning. All assessments are proctored by Cumberland staff. This option is available to students in grades 3-12.

#### Accreditation

Grades K3-12 are accredited by ACSI, the Association of Christian Schools International, and by COGNIA, (formerly SACS - Southern Association of Colleges and Schools). As an accredited school, CCA does not need to be licensed by Bright from the Start under the Georgia Department of Early Care and Learning. We are committed to ongoing self-monitoring to maintain compliance with state licensing requirements.

## PROMOTION TO THE NEXT GRADE IN HIGH SCHOOL

In order for High School students to track to the next grade level, it is necessary for students to show that they are progressing towards a High School diploma. Here are the requirements for each level:

- To be considered a 9th grader students must have successfully completed English, Math, History, and Science courses appropriate for the 8th grade. If one of these courses fails (defined as the numerical average of both semesters being a 70 or above), the student must complete an approved credit recovery plan for the failed core subject using CCA or an approved online provider. Correspondence courses, unapproved outside tutoring, etc. will not be accepted. If a student's cumulative GPA for the 8th Grade is less than 2.5, as defined above, if the student fails more than two core courses, or if the student's actual numeric grade in any core course is less than a 50, CCA recommends and may require repeating the 8th Grade.
- <u>To be considered a 10th grader</u>- students must have completed at least six credit hours. English 9, one math credit, one science credit, and one social studies credit must have been earned.
- <u>To be considered an 11th grader</u>- students must have completed 12 credit hours. Of those, they need two credits each: English, math, science, and social studies. Students must have earned the health/PE credit previously or been enrolled during his/her 11th-grade year.
- <u>To be considered a 12th grader</u>- students must have completed 19 credit hours. Of those, they need to have earned three credits in English. They must have at least two in each of the following: math, science, and social studies, with at least three credits in one of those subjects.

Students will stay in FACTS as the previous grade until all credit requirements are met, with the ability to be promoted mid-year.

Students with a signed parental contract who elect the General Diploma may have slightly different requirements. Only in the case of written contracts, approved in advance, will deviation from the above standards be considered, but not guaranteed.

## Schedule Changes

Within five days of the beginning of a semester, a student may drop or add a course with written parental permission (in cases involving core classes) and at the discretion of the Registrar, Counselor, or Principal. The following criteria must be met:

- 1. The student must justify his need for such a change.
- 2. The change must be made within the class schedule available.
- 3. Please see transcript credits for related issues.

# GRADUATION/DIPLOMA OPTIONS

## College Prep Diploma - Highest Honors - Cumberland Scholar - 27 Units

- 1. Bible: 4 units (May also include Missions, Worship Arts, and/or Christian Leadership)
- 2. English & Literature: 4 units (Must include English 9, English 11, American Literature, and two additional units).
- 3. Mathematics: 4 units (Algebra I, Geometry, Algebra II, & one higher level of math).
- 4. Social Studies: 4 units (World History, U.S. History, Government & Economics, and one additional unit).
- 5. Science: 4 units (Must include physical science, a life science course, and two additional units).
- 6. Foreign Language: 2 units of the same language
- 7. Health/PE: 1 unit
- 8. Electives: 1.5 units (Fine Arts and/or Technology) or more
- 9. At least 2 dual enrollment classes
- 10. Test Preparation: .5 units

## OTHER REQUIREMENTS

- 1. Earn a 3.7 Core (HOPE) GPA
- 2. Score a 1200 Critical Reading & Math on the SAT or a 26 on the ACT in a single sitting
- 3. Complete 50 or more documented community service hours
- 4. Take not fewer than four "Courses of Rigor" as defined by GAFutures
- 5. Participate in not less than four school retreats, trips, or mission trips
- 6. Be accepted to one or more four-year colleges by Jan. 31 of senior year
- 7. Show distinction in arts, leadership, or athletics by completing one or more of the following:
  - Participate in Fine Arts for a minimum of two years
  - Student Government member two or more years
  - Letter for at least two years in the same sport

#### College Prep Diploma with Honors - 25.5 Units

- 1. Bible: 4 units (May Include Missions, Worship Arts, and/or Christian Leadership)
- 2. English & Literature: 4 units (Must include English 9, English 11 American Literature, and two

- additional units).
- 3. Mathematics: 4 units (Algebra I, Geometry, Algebra II, & one higher level of math).
- 4. Social Studies: 4 units (World History, U.S. History, Government & Economics, and one additional unit).
- 5. Science: 4 units (Must include physical science course, life science course & two additional units).
- 6. Foreign Language: 2 units of the same language
- 7. Health/PE: 1 unit
- 8. Electives: 1 unit (Fine Arts and/or Technology)
- 9. Test Preparation: .5 units
- 10. At least 1 dual enrollment class

## Other Requirements (College Prep with Honors)

- 1. Earn a 3.0 Core (HOPE) GPA
- 2. Score a super score of 950 in Critical Reading & Math SAT Scores; with a minimum of 450 in each section or a composite of 20 on the ACT.
- 3. Complete 35 or more documented community service hours
- 4. Be accepted to one or more two or four-year colleges by Jan. 31 of Senior year
- 5. Demonstrate involvement in the larger life of the school through either club membership, athletics, Missions, Student Government, or Fine Arts totaling not less than one year
- 6. Take not fewer than four "Courses of Rigor" as defined by GAFutures

## COLLEGE PREP DIPLOMA - 25 UNITS

- 1. Bible: 4 units (May also include Missions, Worship Arts, and/or Christian Leadership)
- 2. English & Literature: 4 units (Must include English 9, English 11 American Literature, and two additional units).
- 3. Mathematics: 4 units (Algebra I, Geometry, Algebra II, & one higher level of math).
- 4. Social Studies: 4 units (World History, U.S. History, Government & Economics, and one additional unit).
- 5. Science: 4 units (Must include physical science course, life science course & two additional units).
- 6. Foreign Language: 2 units of the same language
- 7. Health/PE: 1 unit
- 8. Electives: 1.5 units (Fine Arts and/or Technology)
- 9. Test Preparation: .5 units
- 10. Take not fewer than four "Courses of Rigor" as defined by GAFutures

## CCA GENERAL DIPLOMA - 24 UNITS

- 1. Bible: 4 units
- 2. English & Literature: 4 units
- 3. Mathematics: 3 units (Algebra I and two additional units).
- 4. Social Studies: 3 units
- 5. Science: 3 units (must include Physical Science course, Life Science course & one additional unit).
- 6. Health/PE: 1 unit

7. Electives, etc: 6 units

## Special Graduation Circumstances

Permission may be granted in special circumstances to graduate with a minimum of 23 units. Such cases must be approved by the Head of School, Principal, Registrar. and Counselor).

#### VALEDICTORIAN

- Students must earn 17 full credits at CCA.
- Students must earn at least a College Prep or Honors Diploma.
- Students must be at CCA for not less than two full years.
- Home school credits and online academy credits from other schools do not count for the purpose of choosing a Valedictorian.
- CCA-issued honors credit and dual enrollment credits do count. Honors credits from other schools do not count as honors but as simple GPA credits.
- In the case of a GPA tie, a numerical score will be used; in the case of a numerical tie, the SAT score will be used to break the tie.
- GPA will be based on scores at the end of the second quarter of the Senior year; to qualify, a student must not make less than a B by the midpoint of the second semester.
- CCA makes all final determinations based on school policies.
- All teacher/office aide credits will be reported on the student's transcript but will not be calculated into the student's GPA for the purpose of Valedictorian and Salutatorian calculations.

## SALUTATORIAN

- Student must earn 17 full credits at CCA.
- Student must earn at least a College Prep or Honors Diploma.
- Student must be at CCA not less than two full years.
- Home school credits and online academy credits from other schools do not count for the purpose of choosing a salutatorian.
- CCA-issued honors credit and dual enrollment credits do count. Honors credits from other schools do not count as honors but as simple GPA credits.
- In the case of a GPA tie, a numerical score will be used; in the case of a numerical tie, the SAT score will be used to break the tie.
- GPA will be based on scores at the end of the second quarter of the Senior year; to qualify, a student must not make less than a B by the midpoint of the second semester.
- CCA makes all final determinations based on school policies.
- All teacher/office aide credits will be reported on the student's transcript but will not be calculated into the student's GPA for the purpose of Valedictorian and Salutatorian calculations.

## Co-Valedictorian or Salutatorian

In the case of a transfer student whose GPA meets or exceeds the selected Valedictorian or Salutatorian, CCA may name the transfer student as a Co-Salutatorian. However, the following conditions must be met: the transfer student must be accepted to a four-year college; up to five homeschool credits may be included if validated by CCA's Registrar, and all other credits must come from an accredited institution. CCA makes all final determinations based on school policies.

## COLLEGE PREP DIPLOMA CONSIDERATIONS

- The Principal, Registrar, and Counselor have the authority to deviate by 1.5 units from standards for the College Prep Diploma in the case of transfer students only as long as state admissions to Georgia four-year institutions are met.
- A valid certificate of competition for a live, not online, Kaplan SAT Test Prep (or approved alternative with the same approximate 60-seat hours) class may fully substitute for CCA test prep for all diplomas; alternatively, test prep may be completed through GA Virtual School, Keystone, or CCA's approved online courses; self-study and self-directed, unsupervised classes will not count. A "P" will appear on the transcript, rather than a letter or numeric grade.

## TESTING AND COLLEGE APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS

Choice of college, or even the decision to attend college, is a student/parent decision. CCA fully supports other options, such as missions, the military, or technical school. However, as a College Preparatory School, CCA has the goal of creating several options from which every student and parent may choose. Each CCA student who is working towards a College Preparatory diploma is expected to take the SAT or ACT preparation classes at CCA or an alternate location and participate in college fairs and presentations.

## TRANSCRIPT CREDITS

All classes attempted will be listed on the transcript. Courses changed during the first week of school, or the first day of the first week, will not appear on the transcript. Withdrawals prior to a date established and updated each year in this handbook (normally equal to approximately the 7th day of class) will appear as a "W" on the transcript. No quality points will be issued. Withdrawals after an established date will appear as a "WP" or "WF" on the transcript as indicated by the student's average. No quality points will be issued for a "WP." However, a "WF" will have the same net effect as an "F" on the transcript with 0 quality points based on .5 attempted credits.

## Transcript Credit for Outsourced Core Courses

Beginning January 2012, in accordance with ACSI accreditation, students may no longer use alternative teachers or programs to earn credit for CCA core classes unless the alternate program is approved by CCA's Registrar. All summer work in core classes must be approved by the School Counselor or Registrar in writing. Summer work is limited to failed classes, approved dual enrollment classes, and approved online courses that meet seat hour requirements. No courses will be approved retroactively. All requests and approvals must be in writing before the start date of the course.

The sole exception to this policy will be related to scheduling issues when students must take an online class to graduate on time. In no case shall a student taking outsourced core courses receive a tuition discount and take less than a minimum full-time load. Any computer time or study hall time is strictly a courtesy.

## Transcript Credit for Outsourced or Online Electives

In all cases, the provider must be approved in advance by CCA's Registrar. Students must choose one of the following options in advance of enrollment and inform the School Registrar in writing:

## **DUAL ENROLLMENT POLICY**

- Juniors and Seniors are encouraged to take dual enrollment classes.
- 10th Graders who have a minimum SAT score of 1200 or minimum ACT composite score of 26 in a single national test administration, may enroll in any approved dual enrollment course.
- 9th Grade students are not eligible for dual enrollment classes.
- Students must have a core GPA of 2.5, and their scores on either the SAT, ACT, or Accuplacer Test must meet the dual enrollment partner's minimum.
- CCA endorses part-time dual enrollment, with Seniors taking up to 15 total hours of college classes per semester in lieu of, or in addition to, classes required for a CCA/GA High School diploma.
- Students who have successfully completed at least 15 credits at CCA are eligible for a reduced load their Senior year. In light of the HOPE Grant historically covering tuition, fees, and books, no tuition discount is available. Students must take a minimum of three CCA classes per semester on campus and plan to participate in retreats and mission trips as college schedules allow.
- CCA has partnered with Chattahoochee Tech and recommends that students take dual enrollment classes through them. Other colleges/universities may be utilized but must be approved by the Counselor or Registrar.
- Certain courses may be substituted for a state-required core class needed for High School graduation with approval from the Registrar and Counselor.
- Each semester class will equal 1 Carnegie unit on the CCA transcript per 3-4 semester hours, BUT will receive a maximum of 5 quality points. Receiving institutions may choose to assign more or less credit based on their internal policies.
- CCA must be approved to see and review all student grades.
- Students must be accepted to the college's dual enrollment program.
- Parents are responsible for all college tuition and fees.
- CCA offers administrative support for students' joint enrollment at Chattahoochee Tech. . If parents elect a different institution, they must be prepared to complete the process with the understanding that CCA may or may not accept the credits.

Students acknowledge that they will receive full credit for the course on their transcript for the credits attempted. If numerical averages are not available, CCA's policy is to have a mid-grade level numerical average recorded as follows: 100 for A+, 95 for A's, 85 for B's, and 75 for C's on a student's transcript numerical average.

## **CREDIT RECOVERY POLICY**

All core classes required for a Georgia college preparatory diploma must be either passed with a C or better at Cumberland Christian Academy or passed with a passing grade issued by an institution from which CCA's Registrar is authorized to accept transfer credits. Examples of such institutions include formerly attended public and accredited private schools. Home school credits are validated following policies listed on CCA's home-school website and in CCA's Parent-Student Handbook. Elective courses, Bible courses, and any other courses CCA may require in addition to state graduation requirements may or may not be repeated based

upon a student's individual academic plan and needs.

In all cases when a student fails a core class, an examination of attendance records will be conducted in order to verify that the student has met seat hour requirements and that the student has an average of at least 57% or better. If seat hour requirements are not met, the student may not elect a credit-recovery option and instead would be required to repeat the failed course in a CCA classroom or through an approved online institution for credit. If the student scored below 57% of the semester average, the student will need to repeat the full course at CCA or take an approved online full course (not credit recovery).

When seat hours have been met, eligible students may elect one of two credit-recovery options: 1) Cumberland Online, or 2) an individually designed plan with a certified teacher approved by CCA. In both cases, additional charges may apply, and completion of course documentation must be submitted to the School Registrar. Every attempted class appears on the CCA transcript unless a student transfers by the annually approved date of the said class to an alternative one for class credit (see High School withdrawal policies for required transcript documentation after the drop/add period). Each failed class appears as zero quality points on the CCA transcript. CCA's grading scale for credit recovery, with assumed seat hours, will always be the same as CCA's grading scale for all other classes. This zero effectively averages with the student's credit recovery grade as a part of the summative average of all quality points to render approximately half of the quality points the student would have received if the class had been passed on the first attempt. CCA may or may not elect to allow students taking Algebra I or Spanish I in the eighth grade to begin their high school transcript in their ninth-grade year. The school counselor and/or registrar are authorized to determine what is in the best interest of the student in satisfying core academic concepts after consultation with the teacher.

In order to address procedures for future unforeseen circumstances, it is hereby established that exceptions to this policy will be approved on a case-by-case and/or class-by-class basis by CCA's administration. Under no circumstances will any attempted credit be removed from the transcript. Teacher-driven credit recovery programs must be approved by the principal and must meet a minimum of 20 seat hours per half Carnegie unit of credit recovery, provided semester seat hours have already been met. Otherwise, a student must fully repeat the course.

## **G**RADUATION **P**ARTICIPATION **R**EQUIREMENTS

Students should have a \$0 balance or a payment plan approved by the business office.

Students are required to attend practice, the Senior brunch, Baccalaureate, and graduation. Students who fail one semester-long class may participate in graduation and not receive an official diploma at that time. These students must have an approved credit recovery plan. The diploma will be issued through the corporate office upon successful completion of credit recovery. Policy exceptions: minor exceptions are approved by a confidential vote of the counselor, registrar, and principal. Other exceptions, if allowable, will be forwarded to the Head of School.

## GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS FOR A CCA STATE APPROVED/ACCREDITED DIPLOMA

Students are encouraged to enter CCA's high school as soon as possible. Typically, students enter 9th grade after completing homeschool for middle and elementary school. After this entry point, some students may choose to do partial work at CCA or to fully enroll. In all cases, the school counselor and registrar must verify any homeschool documentation which may be incorporated into their CCA transcript. We strongly encourage students to complete a minimum of their junior and senior years at CCA. Students who are

attempting to earn a CCA diploma and are entering either full or part-time in their Junior year must submit, prior to entry, complete documentation of home school credits. CCA will post these credits on an official transcript only after the completion of the academic year and after their approval by the school registrar. In all cases, a graduation contract showing the expected sequences of courses will be produced by the counselor and registrar and signed by the parents. A diploma will not be issued unless a minimum of ten courses (or 18 semesters of courses) are taken at CCA (these classes do not include dual enrollment classes). These courses must include two CCA Math courses, Junior & Senior level English, one CCA upper-level science, Senior Bible, and World History. In all cases, state diploma requirements must be met. Home school students desiring a CCA diploma must take a minimum of four classes their senior year and participate in the spiritual life of the school. In order to be considered for valedictorian or salutatorian, a student must earn 30 half credits directly from CCA. Home school credits and credits from institutions with widely dissimilar grading scales may not be included in GPA totals in regard to class rank.

## STUDENTS NOT PLANNING ON A CCA STATE APPROVED/ACCREDITED DIPLOMA

Students may take any combination of classes approved by parents; no home school courses will appear on the CCA transcript. Requirements are listed in a separate section for graduation with a CCA diploma. Home school students who wish to "walk" (i.e., participate in CCA's graduation) may do so but will receive a homeschool diploma provided by the parent.

- Participate in at least one retreat and mission trip and/or participate in at least two years of CCA fine arts or athletics.
- Take at least six-semester classes at CCA, at least four semesters of which are completed during their senior year
- Provide CCA with a completed home school transcript meeting state minimum course requirements for graduation
- Pay graduation dues by the deadline

## **G**RADUATION CORDS

- Valedictorian: gold diploma seal, white cord
- Salutatorian: silver diploma seal, red cord
- 3.7 CCA GPA: gold cord
- Beta Club: gold diploma seal, Beta stole
- 1000+ SAT Club: teal
- Highest Honors: gold diploma seal, medallion
- Honors: gold diploma seal, medallion
- HOPE Scholarship: silver cord
- College prep diploma with acceptance: light blue cord
- Athletic signing: green cord
- Military signing or ROTC scholarship: navy and white cord
- Student Government Service/ Honor Council\*: purple cord

Under no circumstances may students wear paraphernalia from outside honor societies, organizations, etc.

Recognitions and awards at graduation are limited to yearbook dedication, Teacher of the Year, STAR student, Beta Club, official Military and athletic signings, Patriot award, Home-School award, Eagle

<sup>\*</sup>Requires two or more years at the 9th through 12th-grade class office level or one or more years at the Upper School Campus level

Scout/Gold award and the Kendrick Scholarship.

College acceptance, future plans, and scholarships as reported in the program, slide show, etc. must reflect actual scholarships and acceptances.

Graduation hats may be individually decorated with an approved design. Robes may not be decorated.

## HOMESCHOOL HYBRID STUDENTS

Homeschool hybrid students take a limited number of classes both on and off campus. CCA encourages participation by home school students in our academics, arts, athletics, missions, retreats, trips, and chapels. Our desire is to be a resource for, and support to, home school parents. Middle school and upper school students may choose from any CCA classes or activities. Trips, missions, and activities are billed at the full rate even if CCA offers discounts for full time students.

Home School students may select from a large number of classes at the middle school and high school level. See the link on our website under "Homeschool Students" for a complete list.

Home School students must earn a minimum of 16 semester credits to graduate with a CCA diploma unless approved by the Registrar and High School principal.

#### HONORS COURSES CREDITS

Honors courses are given 1/2 extra quality points. They are currently defined as Biology II, Honors Physics, Internships\*, approved online electives not required for graduation, and any fifth math or science (support classes are not included). Dual enrollment and online AP classes are given one extra quality point. (Cumberland uses the dual enrollment model.)

Note: CCA calculates GPA differently than HOPE. The above extra quality points do not count towards the HOPE grade point average.

\*Internships are an honors credit accruing ½ credit. They must be approved by the Counselor or Registrar and include 40 contact hours with the provider, a three-page research paper, a 10-slide Google slides presentation presented to the Counselor or Registrar, and written positive feedback from the provider. A 20-hour internship that has been approved in advance will not receive honors credit, and will receive ¼ credit; only a successful validation of completion is necessary in this case. All internships must be unpaid.

# FACTS (FORMERLY RENWEB) / GOOGLE CLASSROOM

Parents of students in grades K5-12<sup>th</sup> may view their grades on FACTS. Updates are generally made weekly at lower and middle school but can take two weeks at high school because of the block schedule. To access this information you can go directly to the FACTS Management website or use the FACTS login button on CCA's website at www.cumberlandchristian.org. An email account is necessary in order to set up parental and/or student access. For grades, K5-5th, assignments and or homework may be worksheets, packets, or on Google Classroom. For grades, 6th-12th, assignments and or homework will be listed primarily on the student's Google Classroom account. Parents can access their student's accounts by requesting a link from the teacher.

# **CLASSROOM POLICIES**

## TEACHER ROLE

The teacher is generally responsible for enforcing classroom regulations and discipline in accordance with

the Scriptures and school policy. There should be respect for the teacher as the authority of the class. The teacher may use a variety of verbal corrections, restrictions, and visual warnings (pins, flags, names on the board, lunch or recess detentions, etc.) to teach discipline to the students.

## HONOR CODE

CCA incorporates an Honor Code for grades K5-12 to encourage good behavior. "As CCA students, we shall demonstrate respect, integrity, character and honor in an atmosphere of love and kindness."

## Attendance School Term

The K5-8th grade calendar is made up of 4 nine-week periods (quarters), approximately 45 days. K5-8th grade students attend 180 days and K3/K4 students attend 179 days. The 9-12th grade calendar is made up of 2 eighteen-week periods (semesters), approximately 90 days for a total of 180 calendar days per school year.

## MORNING ARRIVAL

As a convenience for our working parents/guardians, elementary students may arrive as early as 7:00 AM at the elementary school campus and 7:15 AM and the MS/HS. Students should report to the designated area for early arrivals where a faculty member will supervise students.

## EARLY DEPARTURE

If a student is to leave school early, a parent-signed note must be sent to the school office and the office has the responsibility of informing the student's teacher. A parent picking up a student must first sign out the student at the school office. The office personnel will then summon the student. Students who drive to campus must sign out at the front office.

## **S**CHOOL **H**OURS

K3-K4 8:10-12:15 or 2:15 K5-2nd 8:00-2:45 3rd-5th 8:00-3:00 6th-12th 8:30-3:30

## LATE START FRIDAYS

The elementary campus will have a later start time on Fridays; however, before school care and bus service to the Trinity campus will not be affected. This will allow for faculty and staff to have staff devotions, faculty meetings, and professional development on Friday mornings. Classes will begin 30 minutes later. K5-5th grades begin class at 8:30 am and K3-K4 begin at 8:40 am.

# Sickness/Medicine

A child should not come to school with a fever or any other condition that is considered contagious. Students should be fever-free (temperature below 100°) for 24 hours before returning to school. Students should also be free of diarrhea and vomiting for 24 hours before returning to school. All medicine for a student must be kept in the school office (with instructions for dosage). The office will only dispense medicine if it has written consent from the parents. Elementary students must see the elementary administrative assistant, not the receptionist.

## ABSENCES / TARDIES

School attendance is essential to student success. A student's presence in school is the responsibility of both parent and student. An excused absence is one validated by a parent's or physician's written email or physical note to the front office. This note is required the day the student returns to school.

#### All absences will be considered unexcused unless validated.

Any student who is absent from school on a given day may not participate in any extra-curricular activities for that day unless the absence is excused by the principal.

Students are allowed a **maximum** of 10 absences (excused or unexcused) per semester. After 10 absences, the student and parent(s) are required to have a joint meeting with the principal and Head of School to discuss the student's situation and how to successfully move forward.

A student is **tardy** if they are not in their seat and ready to work at the time each class period starts. This includes a late arrival at school.

Every three (3) unexcused tardies equals 1 unexcused absence.

Students are allowed a **maximum** of 6 unexcused tardies. After the 6th tardy, the student may receive a Disciplinary Referral, and additional consequences will be given, up to and possibly including, long-term suspension.

## Absences Due to College Visits

We strongly recommend and encourage our students to visit post-secondary institutions as these are great learning experiences. Students should notify both the high school front office and college counselor of upcoming special absences due to college visits. College days are considered to be school-related absences with affirming documentation from the college/university, and will not count toward the allowed 10 absences per semester.

#### APPEARANCE

As we seek to prepare every student, every day, and in every way for careers beyond Cumberland, we want our students to model professionally acceptable appearance in a modern workplace as well as the biblical principles of cleanliness and modesty. Students should come to school looking properly groomed, dressed, and ready for the day.

**Boys** who choose hair tinting/highlighting should select modest and/or natural tones. The hair length should be above the eyes and off the collar. No fad or extreme haircuts such as mohawks, mullets, spikes, long braids, or extreme colors. Sideburns must not be excessive. High School boys' facial hair must be well-kept. No body piercings, other than a stud in the ear, or tattoos are allowed. The only piercing boys may wear are a single, small, modest stud earring (1 per ear).

**Girls** who choose hair tinting/highlighting should select modest and/or natural tones. No fad or extreme haircuts such as mohawks, mullets, spikes, or extreme colors. No body piercings or tattoos are allowed. Girls may wear earrings but they must be small and modest.

It is illegal in Georgia for students under 18 to get a tattoo, even with parental consent. Since most of our students will not be 18 until their Senior year, we reserve the right to dismiss those who obtain a visible tattoo before graduation.

Because what is or is not acceptable within the spirit of being professional and modest can be subjective, campus Principals will be the final interpreter of what is appropriate regarding

## appearance and dress code for their campus.

## Dress Code: Monday-Thursday

- Khaki or navy pants or shorts (no higher than 2 inches above the knee)
- Cumberland logoed polo shirt, sweater, sweatshirt, or hoodie that reaches below the waist (no skin should show when arms are raised). **All shirts and hoodies must have the Cumberland logo.** The hood of a hoodie may never be worn inside any campus building. Shirts from previous years (original logo) may also be worn.
- Girls may wear khaki or navy skorts or skirts that are no higher than 2 inches above the knee.
- Only tennis shoes or dress shoes with a rubber sole may be worn (closed-toe shoes only) Crocs, flip-flops, open-toed shoes, light up shoes, and sandals are not allowed. Boots must have rubber soles.
- Belts should be worn if pants have loops. Pants must fit naturally around the waist and underwear should never be visible
- Undershirts must be a solid color and be tucked in...
- Any jackets may be worn to school and for outside play. However, they must be removed once inside any campus building.
- Head coverings other than scarves or wraps must be removed once inside any campus building.
- Students who arrive in an unapproved shirt will be asked to give in their shirt for an approved shirt loan. Once the loaned shirt has been washed and returned, the original shirt will be returned to the student.

## Dress Code: Friday (Jean Days)

- All choices of attire should be appropriate for a Christian school.
- No leggings are allowed at any time.
- Jeans should have no holes, be in good condition, and not be "skinny" jeans (khaki or navy pants or shorts may also be worn see shorts restrictions above).
- The shoe policy is the same as Monday through Thursday dress.
- Coats/Jackets must be removed once inside any campus building.
- Head coverings, other than scarves or wraps, must be removed once inside any campus building.
- Students wearing hoodies cannot have the hood over their heads at any time during the school day. Midriffs and other revealing outfits are not allowed on any day.
- On game days, athletes may wear an approved Athletic outfit for their event. For other group events, such as Mission Trips, etc., students may wear attire approved by the team leader two days before and two days after the event.

## GRADING

## GRADING SCALE

A - 90-100

B - 80-89

C - 70-79

F - 69 and Below

## **GRADING WEIGHTS**

Teachers will notify parents of the grading weights via the syllabus.

## **GPA**

Calculations of GPA are set on a standard scale of: A = 4, B = 3, C = 2, F = 0 for calculating high school GPA. Dual enrollment and honors classes may give additional quality points.

## Progress Reports

Students will receive a progress report emailed at each midterm. Parents concerned about a student's progress may contact the teacher for specific information. If a parent has a concern, please feel free to schedule a conference with the subject teacher. Parents are encouraged to check FACTS daily.

## Pass/Fail Policy

Elementary and middle school students who fail two core subjects for the school year must either make up the classes in a summer school program or may be asked to repeat the grade level. High school students who fail any core course must either make up the class in a summer program or repeat the class in a subsequent year. See high school graduation requirements for more information.

## ACADEMIC PROBATION

A student who is attending CCA must maintain an overall 2.0 GPA or "C" average or above in core classes (Math, Science, History, ELA, Bible) for each grading period. This is determined by averaging the grades on the report card during a single grading period. If the student's grade falls below a 2.0 GPA or "C" average, he/she may be placed on academic probation for the next quarter or semester of the school year and not be able to participate in after-school sports/arts/academics for the following grading period. Students who continue to stay below a 2.0 GPA or "C" average for more than two grading periods may be asked to withdraw from CCA.

## REPORT CARDS

K-5 through 8th grades consist of 4 quarters. The yearly grade is the average of all four quarters. Semester averages appear on Q2 and Q4 report cards.

9-12th grades consist of 2 semesters, each of which are recorded on the student transcript.

## **CONFERENCES**

Parent/teacher conferences will be offered every fall and spring as needed throughout the course of the school year. Parents are encouraged to attend and review their child's progress.

## **TESTING**

CCA administers the Iowa Test of Basic Skills (ITBS) each spring to students in grades K5 through 11. CCA may administer the PSAT test each fall to students in grades 9-11. CCA may administer the SAT test each fall to students in grade 12.

# STUDENT CONDUCT

## **GENERAL STANDARDS**

• A lifestyle that reflects Christian principles stands out in today's culture. At Cumberland Christian Academy we have standards of conduct that we feel should be part of the student's mode of livingThese standards are for the protection of our students and for the

orderly operation of our school. Attendance at CCA is a *privilege* and not a *right*. Students forfeit this privilege if they do not conform to the standards and ideals for work and life of Cumberland Christian Academy.

- Beloved, let us love one another: for love is of God: and everyone that loveth is born of God, and knoweth God." 1 John 4:7
- The Bible is explicit in teaching that Christians are to love one another. The student is to treat others as he or she would expect to be treated. Students should be careful not to hurt, harass, or threaten anyone physically, emotionally, or in any other way. Matthew 5:43-48; Romans 12:14-21
- CCA expects that its students live above reproach, showing respect to God, country, family, faculty and fellow students. Honesty is highly valued by God and CCA. Cheating and plagiarizing are not acceptable. Lying, complaining, arguing, gossiping, stealing, profaning, or disorderly conduct will not be tolerated. Philippians 2:14; Ephesians 5:4; Colossians 3:8-9; Exodus 20:15
- Students must exhibit cheerful obedience to authority (parents, teachers, etc.) and school regulations, even when the person in authority is not immediately present. Such obedience should be willing and immediate, and is to extend to any member of the school staff, even if that person is not the student's own teacher. Students shall not cause dissension or demonstrate rebellion through active expression or passive indifference. Rom. 13:1-7; Heb. 13:17; 1 Peter 2:18-23
- Conversations are not to infringe on the rights of others.
- Conversations, private or public, are expected to be positive, constructive, and respectful.
  Foul, dirty, or suggestive language, drawings, or stories; pornography of any sort; gossip;
  misuse of God's name or spiritually meaningful terms; suggestive sign language; degrading
  names or putting others down, even if done in fun; are examples of conduct which are
  unacceptable at Cumberland Christian Academy and are causes for immediate disciplinary
  action.
- Students shall not promote or participate in immorality such as pornography, adultery, pre-marital sex, or homosexuality. 1 Corinthians 6:9-10; Galatians 5:19; Ephesians 5:3
- Unnecessary bodily contact, whether affectionate, playful, or hostile, is not acceptable at school. As a rule, students should respect personal space and boundaries.
- No chewing gum on school property.
- Neither alcoholic beverages nor tobacco in any form are allowed at school or school functions or en route to school or school functions. Possession of these or illegal drugs on campus or at school functions is cause for immediate suspension and/or expulsion.

- Weapons are not allowed on school grounds or at school-sponsored events. The term "weapons" includes, but is not limited to rifles, shotguns, handguns, pellet guns, BB guns, stun-guns, blank pistols, knives (including Bowie, switchblade, pocket, hunting), razors, chemical defensive devices, martial arts devices, or other items which school staff could reasonably conclude as being a violation of the intent of this restriction. Students shall not have any explosive device, including bullets, other ammunition, fireworks, smoke bombs, paint bombs, or any item which gives the appearance of these. Possession of weapons is grounds for immediate suspension and/or expulsion.
- Cumberland Christian Academy expects full cooperation from both student and parents in the education of the student. If at any time the school feels that this cooperation is lacking, the student may be requested to withdraw. Also, if the student's behavior or attitude indicates an uncooperative spirit or one that is out of harmony with the spirit and standards of CCA, whether or not there is any definite breach of conduct, he may be requested to seek his or her education elsewhere.
- CCA is God's property. Respect for the appearance and care of the school is a part of the Christian testimony presented by CCA. Willful damage to, or destruction of, school/church property will not be tolerated. Students are to report to the office any damaged furniture or other school property. All damage must be paid for, whether willful or accidental.
- School hallways are quiet zones. Students are to *walk* down halls on the proper side without shouting or shoving.
- Students are to address teachers, school personnel and parent helpers by Dr., Mr., Mrs., or Miss.

The following offenses may result in immediate suspension or expulsion:

- Actions shocking to the conscience
- Fighting (may be considered assault and battery and in extreme cases could result in charges being filed).
- Abusive language to staff or students
- Threats against others
- Vandalism
- Theft and/or possession of stolen property
- Arson/tampering with fire alarm
- Furnishing, selling or possession of controlled substances (drugs, narcotics, alcohol, or poisons)
- Use of intoxicants
- Electronic or Cyber bullying or sending inappropriate material

Public Law O.C.G.A 20-2-1184 requires all school systems to report assaults involving firearms, aggravated battery, sexual offenses, carrying deadly weapons, activities regarding marijuana or other controlled substance to local police and the District Attorney immediately.

It should be remembered that the school not only hopes to contribute much to the student, but the student is expected to contribute much towards the furthering of the mission of the school, both on and off campus. A student who counteracts the goals and purposes of school by indifference or overt action, or intentionally

damages the reputation of the school may be asked to seek his/her education elsewhere.

## CELL PHONES, SMART WATCHES, ETC.

- Cell phones, smart watches, other devices may be used only before school, after 3:30pm, and when approved by the teacher for a class activity. In addition, MS/HS students may use them during lunch and break. The use of devices during these allotted times during the school day is a privilege. If abused, individual privileges will be withdrawn. Electronic devices may NEVER be used during any chapel service.
- If a student uses his/her device without authorization, the following consequences will incur: 1st offense - the device will be taken up by the teacher and the Students will be given a warning. The device will be returned to the student at the end of the class period 2nd offense - the parent has to pick up the device 3rd offense - the parent has to pick up the device AND the student loses the device privileges for the remainder of the 9-week period
- Any student, who is looking at, listening to, or posting inappropriate content or using their device in an inappropriate way during school hours will be subject to the above guidelines and may immediately lose this privilege for the remainder of the school year, even if it is the first offense. **Note: The overriding rule** concerning social media is to use it for good and to be kind.

## ACCEPTABLE USE OF TECHNOLOGY

Cumberland Christian Academy is committed to student use of technology as a tool to expand learning opportunities and conduct scholarly research. The use of technology is a vital skill for our 21st Century learners. Students at CCA utilize computers and other electronic devices on a wireless network. Laptops and campus computers are primarily for educational use consistent with the educational goals of CCA. Personal use may be permitted within certain boundaries. Along with the opportunity this provides comes responsibility. This Acceptable Use Policy is designed to give students and their families clear and concise guidelines regarding the appropriate use of computers or other electronic devices on the CCA campuses. The underlying premise of this policy is that all members of the CCA community must uphold the values of honesty and integrity. The proper use of technology reflects the strength of one's character, as does one's behavior. We expect our students to exercise good judgment and to utilize technology with integrity.

# Digital Citizenship - Student Responsibility

i am responsible for practicing positive digital citizenship.
$\Box$ I will practice positive digital citizenship, including appropriate behavior and contributions on websites, social media, discussion boards, media sharing sites, and all other electronic communications, including new technology
I am responsible for keeping personal information private.
$\Box$ I will not share personal information about myself or others including, but not limited to, names, home addresses, telephone numbers, birth dates, or visuals such as pictures, videos, and drawings without permission.
$\square$ I will not meet anyone in person that I have met only on the Internet.
$\square$ I will abide by all federal and state laws, this Acceptable Use Policy, and all CCA school policies.

i am responsible for my passwords and my actions on my accounts.
$\hfill \square$ I will not share any school usernames and passwords with anyone.
$\hfill \square$ I will not access the account information of another student or teacher.
$\square$ I will log out of unattended equipment and accounts in order to maintain privacy and security.
I am responsible for my verbal, written, and artistic expression.
$\Box$ I will use school-appropriate language in all electronic communications, including email, social media posts, audio recordings, video conferencing, and artistic works.
$\square$ I will be responsible for keeping backup copies of my data.
I am responsible for treating others with respect and dignity.
$\square$ I understand that bullying in any form, including cyber-bullying, is unacceptable.
$\Box$ I will not send, display, text, or receive messages, pictures, or other media which are hateful, abusive, obscene, sexually inappropriate, threatening, racially offensive, considered harassment, or offensive to human dignity.
I am responsible for accessing only educational or approved personal content when using CCA technology.
$\Box$ I will not seek out, display, or circulate material that is hate speech, sexually explicit, or violent. I understand that the use of the school network for illegal, political, or commercial purposes is strictly forbidden. I understand that any exceptions must be approved by a teacher or administrator as part of a school assignment.
$\Box$ I understand that I may only check personal email and web content such as personal media at designated times and places. Each campus will communicate the appropriate circumstances.
$\square$ Because of its potential to create stress on the network, I will not stream music, play online games, or access any audio/video streaming unless under the direct supervision of a teacher.
I am responsible for respecting and maintaining the security of CCA electronic resources and networks.
$\Box$ I will not try to get around security settings and filters, including through the use of proxy servers to access websites blocked by the school.
$\square$ I will not download, install, or use unauthorized software or files, including copyright protected materials, illegal software, or apps on any CCA computers, tablets, or other technologies.
$\Box$ I will not use the CCA network or equipment to obtain unauthorized information, attempt to access information protected by privacy laws, or impersonate other users.
I am responsible for taking all reasonable care when handling CCA equipment.
$\square$ I understand that vandalism of school technology in any form is prohibited.
$\square$ I will report any known or suspected acts of vandalism to the appropriate authority.
$\hfill \square$ I will respect my and others' use and access to CCA equipment.
I am responsible for respecting the work of others.
☐ I will follow all convright guidelines

$\square$ I will not plagiarize or copy the work of another person and represent it as my own and I will properly cite a	all
sources.	

## **Consequences for Irresponsible Use**

Misuse of devices and networks may result in restricted access. Failure to uphold the responsibilities listed above is misuse. Such misuse may also lead to disciplinary and/or legal action against a student, including suspension, expulsion, or criminal prosecution by government authorities.

#### Public Display of Affection

Personal displays of affection before, during, and after school while on school grounds, or while on any school retreat or field trip, are prohibited. Students are not allowed to hold hands, kiss, or have any public displays of affection. Teachers reserve the right to intervene when public displays of affection occur. When circumstances warrant, disciplinary action may occur.

## CLASSROOM CHAPEL STANDARDS

Students of all grades are required to attend chapel on a weekly basis.

## **BULLYING/HARASSMENT**

Bullying is repeated, unwelcome conduct such as verbal abuse, graphic or written statements, threats, physical assault against another student. Harassment is similar conduct that is also threatening or humiliating but it is based on a student's race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, or national origin. Intentional, repeated, harassing, intimidating, or harming conduct towards another student in any form, in person or through social media, will not be tolerated and will be grounds for a Disciplinary Referral and consequences up to and including long term suspension and expulsion.

## BEHAVIORAL PROBATION

If a student consistently exhibits behavioral problems, he or she may be put on behavioral probation. A parent meeting will be required, and the student will be placed on a Behavior Improvement Plan (BIP). The BIP will be evaluated at the end of the quarter. If the student has not shown improvement, the student may be asked to withdraw from CCA.

# In-school Suspension (ISS)

In-school suspension is a program designed to modify student behavior while keeping the student in school with access to schoolwork. It allows the student to earn grades for completed assignments and tests rather than receive a zero for each item missed. This program isolates the student from his peers in a controlled environment, which makes him reconsider the appropriateness of his behavior. The alternative to ISS is out-of-school suspension.

# **OUT-OF-SCHOOL SUSPENSION (OSS)**

A suspended student will not be allowed to come on campus or attend any school function or practice until the day he returns to school from suspension. A suspended student must report to a school administrator to obtain admittance to class. Please note that students may make up work/complete assignments when in OSS.

## SATURDAY SCHOOL

Students may be required to attend Saturday school as a consequence for behavioral issues. Typically a fee is charged as well.

## CHEATING/ PLAGIARISM

Cheating, in any form, is expressly prohibited at Cumberland.. Students who are caught cheating will be susceptible to disciplinary action and possible dismissal. Cheating comes in many different forms and will be addressed on an individual basis. Any student who does not complete his/her own coursework is cheating and will be dealt with according to the policies of the school. Plagiarism is also considered cheating and will be treated as such. On the first offense, the student will receive a 0 initially and <u>must</u> retake or redo the assignment for a maximum grade of 69. Please review the definitions of cheating and plagiarism below.

## Cheating includes but is not necessarily limited to:

- 1. Plagiarism explained below\*
- 2. Submission of work that is not the student's own for papers, assignments, tests, or exams
- 3. Submission or use of falsified data
- 4. Copying answers off of another student's work
- 5. Theft of or unauthorized access to a test or exam
- 6. Use of unauthorized material including textbooks, notes, or computer programs in the preparation of an assignment or during an examination
- 7. Supplying or communicating (in any way) unauthorized information to another student for the preparation of an assignment, test, or exam
- 8. Collaboration in the preparation of an assignment. Unless specifically permitted or required by the teacher, the collaboration will usually be viewed by CCA as cheating. Each student, therefore, is responsible for understanding the policies of each teacher concerning collaboration

## Plagiarism:

\*Plagiarism is the unauthorized use or close imitation of the language and thoughts of another author and the representation of them as one's own original work.

As an example, students copy and paste portions or whole sections of work from another source and claim it as their own. This includes copying AI generated work such as ChatGPT and presenting it as your own work.

## NATIONAL BETA CLUB

9th through 12th Grade students are chosen for membership in the CCA Chapter of the National Beta Club based on their scholastic average (3.5), Christian character, credible achievements, and commendable attitudes. Students must attain a cumulative GPA of 3.5 or better to be considered for membership and must maintain a GPA of 3.4.

# JV and Varsity Sports Eligibility

Any Senior who fails a core class required for graduation during the Fall Semester will be ineligible to play in the Spring Semester unless CCA credit recovery is completed during the Christmas break.

If a high school underclass student (or middle school student playing JV or Varsity) fails two core or elective classes during the fall semester, that student will be ineligible for the spring semester, unless required CCA credit recovery is completed during the Christmas break. Students who have failed core classes will be ineligible for the following year unless all their failed core classes are recovered by the beginning of the next eligibility season. Students who require recovery for more than two classes over the summer are automatically ineligible for the fall. Students are

allowed to fail one elective or non-state required class and remain eligible without recovery.

Coaches of high school players in team sports may receive weekly updates on student progress during the season; these coaches are encouraged to use this confidential information to ensure student success. They are encouraged to contact students, parents, etc., as well as enforce playing time restrictions as they deem fit to benefit students.

## ACTIVITIES AND FIELD TRIP POLICY

It is the intent of CCA to provide a student with a rich variety of activities and trips. Student activities at Cumberland Christian Academy will always be in support of our mission to transform the heart, mind, and soul of each student for Jesus Christ. Each activity that supplants class time will be approved by the principal in advance. The criterion for approval will be either: 1) <a href="Curriculum extension">Curriculum extension</a> - direct support and/or extension of the classroom objectives. Field trips, etc. fall into this category. 2) <a href="Co-curricular focus">Co-curricular focus</a> - activities that have a focus other than in the immediate curriculum must have a justification related to the greater school mission. The most acceptable of these activities have a spiritual focus, support the school's greater purpose, and directly count towards seat hours. The primary activities in this category are missions, service projects, and retreats/activities focused on spiritual growth. Overnight field trips in grade 9 and above must incorporate a focus on worship and spiritual growth regardless of the destination; the incorporation of this focus is recommended for overnight trips at all levels. A lesser sub-category is fun events that do not directly support the general mission of the school but indirectly build community; such activities must be approved by the head of the school's office and should be strictly limited in their utilization of classroom seat hours. In all cases, teachers and chaperones are charged to search for "teachable moments" and use any such opportunities accordingly. In the case of full-day and overnight trips, it is mandated that high school planners provide an alternate activity or assignment for each trip.

All students must have signed permission for the event and fees paid in advance.

Drivers must supply a copy of their current driver's license and insurance. Drivers for field trips are not permitted to make any stops to or from the event that are not specified on the permission slip. The student must return with the school group unless the student's parent is in attendance on the trip. Students on field trips are representing our Lord, first, as well as CCA, and should reflect Christian standards of conduct at all times.

# Cost/Publicity

Every effort to make trips affordable is to be made. Trip costs and destinations are to be a reflection of the demographics of CCA. All overnight trips will be publicized in advance and utilize staggered payment deadlines. Missions and school trip fees must be paid in advance. Credit cards are accepted.

## Supervision

Male and female chaperones will accompany all overnight trips that involve both genders.

## CHAPERONE POLICY FOR NON-CCA PERSONNEL

The overarching purpose of all CCA travel is to glorify God and to bring students either into a relationship with Him or closer to Him; this purpose is valid for all retreats, formals, academic competitions, art competitions, missions, athletics, recreational, and educational trips. CCA's professional educators have specialized training, a live call, background checks, reference checks, certifications, and experience in support of this purpose. Parents, grandparents, and other relatives by blood, marriage, or adoption who wish to chaperone trips are welcome to do so for a price set by CCA as long as there is space available and a student is not displaced; CCA exists in support of families. Non-relative, non-staff may be requested to attend trips only when their presence is required for a specific

purpose; for example, CCA alumni escorting a visit to the college they attend; a college student serving as a lifeguard on a CCA trip during their break, etc. In such cases: 1) these individuals must pass a criminal background check when requested by the school, and 2) these individuals must sign CCA's code of ethics. We are thankful for the private, ethical involvement of significant others in our students' lives when those individuals model Christian commitment. Parent chaperones supervising students on overnight trips and drivers transporting students other than their own children must have a background check. CCA reserves the right to approve or deny any non-CCA personnel chaperone.

# **ADDITIONAL POLICIES**

## **BUS RULES**

- Students should remain seated and facing forward with feet on the floor at all times.
- Students must remain quiet and in their seats so as to not distract the driver.
- PLEASE, NO EATING on the bus. Do not bring carbonated or hot beverages. Only water, sports drinks, etc. with a screw top are acceptable.
- Students will be expected to help pick up trash on the bus.
- Students may use cell phones, headphones/earbuds, etc. on the bus.
- Preschool students will require a car seat. Students under 8 must use the lap belt on the bus.
- Students should not bother, tease, annoy, harass, etc. other students.
- Students **MUST REMAIN QUIET** at all times and silent when at all railroad crossings.

Violation of the CCA Bus Rules will result in the student losing Bus Privileges temporarily or permanently. There will be active video cameras on the bus at all times.

## **CONFIDENTIALITY**

While summative grades and test scores are confidential, parents agree to allow the school to publicize honors and scholarships.

#### UNITY

Parents/guardians are asked to bring problems or questions to the attention of the appropriate CCA personnel immediately and privately without creating gossip or discord. (Matthew 18:15-17) If a disagreement occurs it should be dealt with quickly and maturely so that unity may be restored (Romans 12:18). Attendance at CCA is not a right, but a privilege that can be forfeited by any student or family that does not conform to the standards and regulations of the school. CCA may withdraw a student or deny re-admission when, in the opinion of the school, the student or parent is not in harmony with the spirit of CCA, regardless of whether or not he/she conforms to the specific rules and regulations of CCA. The school may request the withdrawal of even a well-behaved student if the

parents/guardians of that student become excessively disruptive, slanderous, abusive, disorderly, or uncooperative. All parents/guardians of CCA students must be in harmony with the aims and purposes of CCA.

## PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT

Parents/guardians are urged to take an active part in CCA by encouraging their children to learn. As in any activity that children undertake, the interest of the parent/guardian has a tremendously positive influence on the child's performance. Parents/guardians are urged to attend all PTF (Parent/Teacher Fellowship) meetings, orientations, open houses, as well as any specially called meetings. CCA assumes that each family will be represented at these informative and important gatherings. Parents are also encouraged to volunteer to help in a variety of ways. This includes chaperoning field trips, substitute teaching, and assisting with class holiday parties. Other volunteer opportunities include banquets, sports, music and drama programs, and fundraising activities. Parents/guardians should notify the appropriate campus office to volunteer. Finally, parents/guardians are asked to pray for the school, staff, and students on a regular basis. Our real battles are not with each other, but against the powers of darkness (Ephesians 6:12). The power of prayer is our best weapon.

## MEDIA/MUSIC/ENTERTAINMENT

"Finally, brothers, whatever is true, whatever is noble, whatever is right, whatever is pure, whatever is lovely, whatever is admirable—if anything is excellent or praiseworthy—think about such things." Philippians 4:8

A wide range of opinions exists regarding what is considered acceptable in our school in the area of music, drama, and movies. CCA must find what we consider to be an acceptable standard, and our staff and students must be supportive of this standard even if it differs from their own. We seek to focus on what we have in common rather than our differences. The principal reserves the right to approve any media/music/film used at a school function. CCA supports or sponsors only Christian concerts.

We teach against watching or listening to movies, music, or other forms of media which promote or encourage unchristian behavior. Though we have liberty in Christ Jesus, we seek to separate ourselves from the world and from the practices of the world. Our forms of entertainment should glorify God and not defame our Lord or our Christian values. All school families are encouraged to support this policy and to use the variety of internet resources to preview and screen the media their children experience.

## GAME ATTENDANCE

Students are encouraged to come out and support the home team. When parents drop non-driving students off for CCA games, parents are fully responsible and CCA is not liable for the students and does not assume responsibility to supervise them. For their own safety, we request that students below grade 8 be accompanied by a parent or older sibling at a game.

# Visitors/Loitering

It is the desire of the principal, their assistants, and the faculty to be of service to both parents and students. We welcome visits from parents. We do ask that such visits be made by definite appointment with the principal or teacher. Visitors must sign in at the front desk and display a visitor's badge. The principal reserves the right to limit visitations that could be disruptive. Parents are always welcome to observe classes, etc. Please contact us in advance whenever possible. Alumni are encouraged to visit; please sign in at the front desk. Loitering on school property is not allowed.

# PROMOTIONAL PHOTOS/VIDEO

CCA will make promotional photos and videos throughout the school year for use on our website, brochures, social media, and PTF meetings. In order to represent our classrooms and school activities, individuals and/or groups of students will appear in the video or photos. If you do not want your child to participate, you must inform the campus principal in writing prior to the first Thursday of the academic year. In attending CCA parents accept this policy. Families that house foster children or have specific reasons not to have their child's photo published are responsible for personally contacting the school. The school does not accept responsibility for securing a photo release from each parent. Teachers and administrators are charged to communicate this policy to parents and are directed not to secure or distribute individual photo releases.

## CHILD ABUSE

If a faculty or staff member suspects that a child is being abused or neglected, he or she must report it to the principal or administrator immediately and, by law, must report the incident within 24 hours to the local Department of Family and Children Services of the county in which the child lives.

## HOLIDAY OBSERVANCES

Please see the current online school calendar.

## Social Events

All school social events shall be carried out in such a way as to support in practice and spirit the mission of CCA.

## STUDENT DRIVERS

All student drivers are required to fill out and provide a contract signed by the student and a parent/guardian, pay the fee each semester, provide proof of auto and medical insurance, and comply with all rules regarding transportation. The form can be found on CCA's website.

## Student may:

• Drive to/from school for purpose of attending classes or club meetings, athletic events, or other school events

A student may not: (Any violation will result in immediate loss of driving privileges)

- Leave campus for any reason without parent/guardian written permission
- Leave for lunch
- Drive any other student
- Drive to chapel
- Hang out in the car between classes, during the break, at lunch, or any other times school is in session

## HANDBOOK CLAUSE

CCA reserves the right to amend the handbook at any time for approved policy changes or clerical corrections. All changes will be approved by the Head of School or his designee or the school board if applicable. The most current parent/student handbook can be found on the CCA website.